

# STUDENT/PARENT HANDBOOK 2023-2024 SCHOOL YEAR Northwood Academy Charter School 4621 Castor Avenue Philadelphia, PA 19124 Tel: 215.289.5606

www.northwoodcs.org

## Table of Contents:

	Page
Northwood Academy's Governance	3
2023-2024 Academic Calendar	4
Policies & Protocols	5
Communicating Questions or Concerns	6
Visiting Northwood Academy	7
Student Attendance	7
Transportation Services at Northwood Academy Charter School	11
Student Wellness at Northwood Academy	12
McKinney Vento Act	14
Student Activities at Northwood	15
Field Trips at Northwood Academy	15
Academics at Northwood Academy	15
Report Cards	23
Qualifying for Special Education Relates Services	25
Application of the Code of Conduct	34
Uniform Policy	34
Cell Phones and Items of Value	35
PBIS (Positive Behavior Intervention & Support)	35
Northwood Academy School-Wise Behavior Expectations	36
Anti-Bullying, Anti-Cyber Bullying and Anti-Hazing Bllying Policy	49
Harassment (Other than Sexual Harassment - See Title IX Board Policy)	51
Confidential Reporting of Safety Concerns	51

Suspension of Privileges at Northwood Academy	51
Suspension at Northwood Academy	51
Response to Students in Crisis	54
FERPA	55
Search & Seizure	58
Parent Volunteer Opportunities	59
School Visitation Protocol	60
School Premises Permissions & Conducts	60
Classroom Access Policy	61
Communicating with Staff/Teachers	61
Northwood Student & Family Commitments	63
Handbook Sign-Off	65

## Administration

Eric Langston Diana Abellard Audrey Gordon Powell Michael Kell Michael McLeish Edwena Leite Cheif Executive Officer Principal Lower School Assistant Principal Upper School Assistant Principal Director of School Business Director of Special Education

## Northwood Academy's Governance

Northwood Academy Charter School was chartered by The School District of Philadelphia in 2005. NACS operates under the governance of its charter and is accountable to its Board of Trustees.

All Board and subcommittee meetings are open to the public and are held online via Zoom. Members of the community are also permitted to make public comments during the Board meeting.

The Northwood Academy Charter School Board of Directors recognizes the value, to school governance, of public comment on matters facing the school.

In order to permit fair and orderly expression of such comment, the Board will provide up to a thirty (30) minute period for public participation on each of its public meeting agendas. Public comment may be on any topic related to the operation of the charter school. Please note, to be placed on the public section of the agenda, a written request must be addressed to the Board of Directors and hand delivered to the front office or sent via U.S. Mail to 4621 Castor Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19124 or emailed to **publiccomment@northwoodcs.org**. Requests must be received at least three (3) working days prior to the scheduled meeting.

- The request must include all of the following information or it will be denied:
- The speaker's name
- What, if any, group or persons the speaker represents
- What, if any, relation the speaker or represented group has with Northwood
- The topic or matter that will be addressed

Time allotted to individuals will be limited to three (3) minutes. However, additional written information may be presented to and considered by the Board.

Should you miss your designated place on the agenda, you will need to resubmit your request for a future meeting. No one may make the presentation on your behalf. Board members and administrators will not respond to public comment during the comment period.

The NACS Board of Trustees will meet according to the following dates:

- Wednesday, August 16, 2023
- Wednesday, October 18, 2023
- Wednesday, December 20, 2023
- Wednesday, February 21, 2024
- Wednesday, April 17, 2024
- Wednesday, June 19, 2024

Subcommittee meetings occur during the first and last Wednesday of each month at 5:00pm via Zoom

August 21-25, 2023	Staff Only
1 ugust 21 25, 2025	- Professional Development Days
August 28, 2023	First Day of School
1 ugust 20, 2025	- Grades K-8
September 4, 2023	Labor Day
5-promoter 1, 2020	- School Closed
September 15, 2023	Rosh Hashanah
	-School Closed
September 25, 2023	Yom Kippur
1	- School Closed
October 18th, 2023	Full Day PD for Staff
	No School for Students
November 10, 2023	Veterans Day Observance
	- School Closed
November 23-24, 2023	Thanksgiving Holiday
	- School Closed
December 25, 2023 - January 2, 2024	Winter Recess
	- School Closed
January 15, 2024	Martin Luther King's Birthday
	- School Closed
February 19, 2024	President's Day
	- School Closed
March 25-29, 2024	Spring Recess
	- School Closed
April 10, 2024	Eid al-Fitr
	- School Closed
April 22-26, 2024	PSSA ELA
	- Grades 3-8 (Half-Days)
April 29 - May 3, 2024	<b>PSSA Mathematics &amp; Makeups</b>
	- Grades 3-8 (Half-Days)
May 6-10, 2024	PSSA Science & Makeups
	- Grades 4 & 8
May 27, 2024	Memorial Day
	- School Closed
June 7, 2024	Last Day for Students and Staff
June 19, 2024	Juneteenth
	- School Closed

## Northwood Academy's 2023-2024 Academic Calendar

#### Scheduled Half Days

- Wednesdays- Each Wednesday, school ends and Students are dismissed at 12:00 pm. Northwood Professional Learning Days
- Thursday December 6, 2023- Report Card Conferences
- Thursday March 13, 2024- Report Card Conferences
- Monday-Friday April 22-26, 2024- PSSA Testing
- Monday-Friday April 29-May 3, 20204 PSSA Testing
- Thursday June 6, 2024- 8th Grade Closing Ceremony
- Friday June 7, 2024- Last Day of School for Students

## **Northwood Policies & Protocols**

#### **Contact Us**

The main office at Northwood Academy Charter school is open daily throughout the school year from 7:45am am- 3:00 pm. Once the main office is closed, Students and parents are not permitted to access parts of the building to retrieve forgotten materials. Additionally, custodians are not permitted to retrieve items nor allow anyone into the classrooms. These procedures are in the interest of the safety of all employees and Students.

## **Communicating Questions or Concerns**

We encourage you to contact the staff member named as the first point of contact directly with any questions, concerns, or suggestions you may have about events at the school."

Inquiry Topic	First	Second	Third	Fourth	Fifth	Sixth
Grades Instruction Curriculum Student work	Teacher	Assistant Principal	Principal	CEO		
Student Discipline Student Concerns	Teacher	Dean of Students	Principal	CEO	Board	
Transportation	Operations Department	Director of Operations	CEO			
Extra Curricular Activities	Teacher	Community Coordinator	Director of Operations	CEO		
Volunteer Opportunities/ Clearances	Community Coordinator	Director of Operations	CEO			
Specialized Services/ Special Education	Teacher	Director of Special Education	Principal	CEO		
Enrollment Student Records Request	Main Office	Director of Operations	CEO			
Student Health/	School Nurse	Director of Operations	CEO			

Medicine						
Athletics	Coach/ Teacher	Athletic Director	Principal	CEO		
Teacher Concern	Teacher	Assistant Principal	Principal	CEO		
Student Attendance	Teacher	Counselor	Assistant Principal	Principal	CEO	
Youth Experiencing Homelessness	Counselor	Social Worker	Principal	CEO		

## Visiting Northwood Academy

- Visitors must call ahead to announce their visit
- All school visitors, including parents, and volunteers must sign in at the main office and obtain administrator approval before proceeding to any area of the school building.
- All visitors must obtain a visitor's pass that must be returned before leaving the building.
- Guests that arrive to visit teachers during instructional time will be denied without prior approval from an administrator.
- Parents & guardians are encouraged to visit the school to observe their children and learning in action.

## **Student Attendance**

Each school day brings forth new opportunities for learning. Studies show that Students who attend school regularly achieve higher than those with inconsistent attendance. To maximize student learning and avoid grade retention, all Students of compulsory age (age 6-18) are required to attend school each day that school is in session. Every minute of instructional time matters thus we encourage Students to arrive at school on time each day that school is in session.

- The school day begins at 7:40 am and ends at 3:00 pm.
- Students will be considered tardy at 8:05 am.

#### **Arrival Procedures**

• Bus riders enter through the front door on Castor Avenue. Students who ride to school on the school bus must report to their designated area for supervision until school begins.

• Students who walk, are dropped off or catch public transportation to school should enter through the black top on Adams Avenue after 7:15 am and report to their designated areas until school begins.

### Late Arrivals

- Students that arrive at school after the admission doors close at 7:45am must enter the building through the Castor Avenue entrance.
- Students will complete a Tardy slip and give it to their homeroom teacher upon arrival to class.
- If a student arrives at school after 7:52 am but before 9:00 am with a written note from the parent/guardian providing a lawful reason, the tardy will be excused.

### Dismissal

- Parents & Guardians are required to complete a dismissal plan to be maintained with the teacher & the main office.
- A written and signed note, email, or phone call to the main office by 2:00 is required should it become necessary to make a change to the student's regular dismissal procedure.
- School bus riders will be dismissed at 2:55 pm from their classroom to the designated area to board the bus.
- Students who take Septa, walk or are being picked up will be dismissed according to the following schedule
  - Grades 3-6 will be dismissed at 3:00 to the black top on Adams Avenue.
  - Grades K-2 will be dismissed at 3:00 to the playground entrance on Orthodox Street.
  - Grades 7&8 will be dismissed at 3:00 on Adams Avenue (side entrance).

Please be mindful that teachers must supervise their Students during admit and dismissal and thus is not a good time to hold conversations regarding student progress or behavior. To ensure that the teacher can give you their undivided attention, schedule an appointment for a discussion with the teacher.

### Early Dismissal

While we encourage parents and guardians to ensure that Students are in attendance for the full day of school, at times it becomes necessary to facilitate an early dismissal. The following guidelines support early dismissals at Northwood Academy.

Early dismissals:

- Occur before 2:00 pm on full days and 11:00 on half days.
- Granted after the main office receives a phone call or written/signed note or email from a parent or guardian listed in the student's school profile.

- Granted only to properly identified adults listed in the student's school profile-without exception.
  - Proper Identification: State or federal issued ID Card
- Granted only by visiting the main office and making the request to office staff.
- Granted after the requesting adult completes the Early Dismissal log.

Northwood Academy will not honor verbal or written requests to grant an early dismissal to an adult that is not listed in the student's profile. It is essential that parents maintain accurate contact and profile information.

#### **Student Absence**

Northwood Academy will comply with mandatory state laws regarding student absences. All student absences are considered unexcused until the school receives written documentation explaining the student's absence. A student absence can be excused if it aligns with one of the following circumstances:

Excused Absences

- Personal Illness or Injury
- Recovery from Illness or Injury
- Mandated Attendance in Court of Law
- Death within the immediate family including, but not necessarily limited to, parents, siblings, grandparents, or other family members living in the household
- Medical & Dental Appointments (NACS encourages parents and guardians to schedule appointments outside of school hours). Notice of such an absence must be provided prior to the day of the appointment, except in the case of an emergency
- Religious Holidays
- School-sponsored event
- Educational Events with Administrative pre-approval

Should it become necessary for a student to be absent from school, parents/guardians must submit an excuse note by emailing or providing a written note to the homeroom teacher within 3 days of the occurrence. The email should include the following information:

- Student name and section
- Date
- Date of Absence
- Reason for Absence

#### **Pre-Approved Trips**

NACS recognizes from time to time Students may have the opportunity to participate in pre-planned trips and educational experiences during the regular school. Parents and guardians can request an absence by completing the Pre-Approved Absence Request Google form located on our school's website by accessing the Parent/Student tab. Upon receipt of the request, an evaluation will be made based on the following criteria:

- stre student tab. Opon receipt of the request, an evaluation will be made based on the following crite
- Educational Value of the trip for the development of the student
- Attendance record (must be free of unlawful absences)
- The total days of the absence shall not exceed 10 days
- Number and frequency of prior requests for educational trips. A maximum of five days will be approved for family trips
- Present academic standing
- Present academic programing
- The form should be submitted as early as possible but no less than 5 days before the absence.
- Pre-planned trips during the PSSA, or other required assessments will not be approved.

April 29 - May 3, 2024	PSSA Mathematics & Makeups - Grades 3-8 (Half-Days)
May 6-10, 2024	PSSA Science & Makeups - Grades 4 & 8

#### Missed Assignments During Absence

- Tests, quizzes, projects and presentations are a major part of the student's grade and are required to be made up if missed due to student absences.
- Homework to be made up as a result of absence is at the discretion of the teacher.
- Classwork to be made up as a result of absence is at the discretion of the teacher.
- Students are encouraged to continue working through their iReady personalized learning path during the absence.
- Parent/ guardians should reach out directly to the teacher via email to request student work during absences.

#### Truancy

It is critical that parents and guardians comply with the aforementioned attendance policies as a failure to do so must be coded as parental neglect and may lead to involvement with the Philadelphia Department of Human Services or Philadelphia Family Court. Please see Attendance/Truancy Board Policy at: and a copy may be obtained at the front desk.

- Parents or guardians of Students that accumulate 3 or more days of unexcused absences will receive a legal notice.
- Parents or guardians of Students that accumulate 6 or more days of unexcused absences will be invited to an School Attendance Improvement Conference where a School Attendance Improvement Plan ("SAIC") will be developed in order to work through barriers to regular student attendance.
- After implementation of the SAIC and if Student continues to be truant, Parents or guardians of Students that accumulate 10 or more unexcused absences will be referred to either Philadelphia's Department of Human Services or the Philadelphia Family court.

3 days or more unexcused absences	Truant	3 day Legal Notice
6 or more unexcused absences	Habitually Truant	Attendance Plan Meeting
10 or more unexcused absences	Habitually Truant	Referral to Phila DHS/ Philadelphia Family Court

#### Withdrawal from NACS

At Northwood Academy, we value and appreciate the opportunity to educate each of our Students; however, at times it becomes necessary to withdraw Students from our program.

- Parents and guardians who plan to withdraw a student from Northwood Academy must visit the main office to complete the necessary withdrawal paperwork.
- All books, materials and financial obligations must be satisfied before withdrawal can be completed or student records can be forwarded.

## Transportation Services at Northwood Academy

Northwood Academy charter school partners with the School District of Philadelphia to provide transportation services to its Students. While NACS facilitates the request for transportation, the bus route, schedule and final determination on student transportation requests are made by the School District of Philadelphia. Parents and guardians can make a request for transportation by accessing the transportation request form under the Parents & Students tab on the Northwood Academy website.

Initial requests for transportation are made through the Northwood transportation department. Follow up requests for information regarding transportation must be directed to the School District of Philadelphia (215) 400-4350.

#### Parent Flat Rate Program

The School District of Philadelphia has launched a program to provide a monthly payment to eligible parents who choose to opt out of District bus, van, or cab assignments and instead drive their child to and from school. All registered families will receive \$300 per month (\$3,000 for the school year) for transporting their child to and from school. The District also offers the option for families to receive \$150 per month (\$1,500 for the school year) to transport their child to school in the morning but still utilize bus, van, or cab service in the afternoon. Parents and guardians can register for the Parent Flat Rate program by accessing the link to the SDP website under Parents & Students tab on the Northwood Academy website.

Generally, Students in grades 1-6 are eligible to become a bus rider at NACS. All bus riders are required to adhere to the rules regarding conduct on the bus or disciplinary consequences including suspension and expulsion from bus services.

Students in grades 7&8 receive a Septa Key Card and are required to use Septa to travel to school.

## Student Wellness at Northwood Academy

Northwood Academy's Office of Student Health seeks to support student wellness by:

- Facilitating various health screening
- Developing Individualized Health Programs
- Developing Emergency Care Plans for Students as needed
- Supporting the Development of 504 Plans for Students with medical conditions

Northwood Academy is committed to implementing a school health plan that supports Students wellness and meets state requirements. Each year the school nurse facilitates the following health screenings.

- Growth Screening Northwood facilitates a height and weight screening annually in compliance with state requirements. Parents and guardians will be notified of the findings as the screening occurs throughout the school year.
- Hearing Screening- Northwood facilitates a hearing screening each year of Students in kindergarten, 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 7th grades.
- Vision Screening- Northwood facilitates a hearing screening each year for Students in kindergarten through fourth grade and Students outside of aforementioned grades as needed.
- Dental Examination- Northwood partners with a licensed dentist to provide dental screenings to Students in first, third and seventh grade.
  - The school nurse will share information regarding the dentist's visit to Northwood directly with parents and guardians
- Parents will be notified of the results of each screening

We request your partnership in the following ways:

- Submit Documentation of Required Immunizations
  - Parents or guardians of Students enrolling or entering kindergarten must submit proof of immunization upon enrollment.
  - Required Immunizations
    - Diphtheria, Tetanus, and Acellular Pertussis (DTap); 5 doses
    - Polio (IPV); 4 doses
    - Measles, Mumps, and Rubella (MMR); 2 doses
    - Hepatitis B (HepB); 3 doses
    - Varicella (VZV); 2 doses
  - Parent or guardians of incoming 7th grade Students must submit proof of immunization
    - Diphtheria, Tetanus and Acellular Pertussis (DTap); 1 dose
    - Meningococcal Conjugate (MCV4); 1 dose
- Submit Documentation of Physical Examination
  - Parents or guardians of Students entering kindergarten must submit proof of physical examination upon enrollment.
  - Parents or guardians of Students entering the 6th-grade must submit proof of physical examination by February of their 5th-grade year.
    - Physical examination forms can be found on the NACS website.
  - Parents or guardians must submit documentation to the school nurse by visiting the Main Office.
- Submit Documentation of Dental Examination
  - Parents or guardians of Students must submit proof of dental examination upon enrollment.
  - Parents or guardians of Students in 3rd and 7th grade must submit proof of dental examination.
    - Dental forms can be found on the NACS website.
    - NACS partners with a dentist to facilitate dental examinations for Students annually. Information will be disseminated via email, social media and direct parent contact.
  - Parents or guardians must submit documentation to the school nurse by visiting the Main Office.
- Notify School Nurse of life threatening allergies and medical conditions
  - Parents or guardians must contact the school nurse to discuss medical conditions and collaborate with the school nurse to develop an Individualized Health Care Plan
- Providing Medication According to the Following Procedure
  - Parents or guardians must contact the school nurse to schedule a convenient time to submit

the medicine and complete required documentation.

- The medicine must be received by the school nurse in its original packaging and labeling.
- Allow Students to Remain at Home Under the Following Conditions:
  - Secreting green nasal or eye drainage
  - Continual harsh cough
  - Vomiting or diarrhea
  - Red, watery, and crusted eye (pink eye/ conjunctivitis)
  - $\circ$   $\,$  Temperature of 100  $^\circ$  or above- Students should be fever free without medication before returning to school
  - Rashes that have not been diagnosed by a physician
  - Discovery of lice and 24 Hours after treatment for lice

## Mckinney-Vento Act

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act is a federal act to ensure that homeless children and youth have access to free and appropriate public education.

According to the federal law, a child is considered homeless if they experience the following circumstances:

- Resides in a public or private shelter
- Resides in a place not designated for or ordinarily used for sleeping or living accommodation (vehicles, campers, motels).
- Resides with their family in a residence with other relatives or friends due to a lack of housing (doubling up).
- Is a runaway
- Is a child of migrant workers who lack adequate housing
- Has been abandoned
- Is considered an "unaccompanied youth"- teens living with friends or relatives who do not have guardianship of the student.

Our school social worker is equipped and committed to supporting Students experiencing homelessness to ensure that they have access to their education at Northwood Academy. Contact our school social worker directly via email to discuss options for support.

### Student Activities at Northwood Academy

At Northwood, we consider extracurricular activities to be a vital part of the school experience. We recognize the positive impact that participation in extracurricular activities has on student self-esteem, interpersonal skills and academic achievement.

#### After-school Extracurricular Activities

During the school year, NACS teachers and staff members are encouraged to share their skills and experiences with Students in the form of extracurricular activities. Each trimester, Students will be invited to join a club or group that aligns with their interests. Extracurricular activities are hosted after school Monday - Thursday from 3:15pm- 4:15pm

#### Athletics at NACS

Northwood Students are encouraged to participate in athletic activities. Student athletes are expected to maintain passing grades in all subjects and display behavior consistent with positive expectations outlined in The Bulldog Way: Be Safe, Respectful & Responsible.

## Field Trips at Northwood Academy

Throughout the school year, Students at all grade levels will be invited to participate in off-campus trips that serve an educational purpose or incentivise positive student behavior. Our goal is to ensure that all of our Students experience learning and fun outside of the classroom. We expect our Students to demonstrate behavior that represents The Bulldog Way. While all Students are invited to participate in educational field trips, Students are invited to incentive field trips based on their conduct and are determined by meeting specific criteria. Parents and guardians will receive a trip slip outlining the itinerary and payment details if required.

### Academics at Northwood Academy

#### **Instructional Program**

Our instructional program is designed to meet the needs of the whole child. All Students participate in direct instruction aligned with the core subjects and supplemental curriculum that build their social and interpersonal skills.

#### **Core Instruction**

At Northwood Academy, Students engage in courses of study that align with the PA Core Standards and PA Academic Standards with the goal of preparing Students for the PSSA. Students receive instruction in the English Language Arts, math, social studies and science disciplines.

#### **Expressive Arts**

Students in grades K-4 receive instruction in character education, music, STEAM and physical education. Students in grades 5-8 receive instruction in College & Career Readiness, STEAM, physical education and art.

#### School-wide Personalized Learning Program

All Students at Northwood Academy engage in a personalized learning program with the goal of supporting student growth and performance in ELA and math. Students complete individualized lessons using the iReady program.

#### Grading

Northwood Academy Charter School is committed to adhering to consistent grading practices, where grades are an accurate reflection of student learning. The current policies include the separation of achievement and work habits, guidance on providing scholars additional opportunities to demonstrate proficiency, and the importance of ongoing communication with scholars and parents.

#### Grading & Assessment

• A student's grade communicates academic performance: what the student knows and is able to do, as measured against the learning standards of the class

The purpose of the grading guidelines is to establish grading and reporting practices, in order to reach the following goals:

- Ensure that grades are based on student achievement, knowledge, and skill proficiency demonstrated in the classroom and are separated from work habits.
- Promote consistency in grading across grade level teams
- Promote ongoing formative feedback to scholars
- Promote practices that encourage continuous engagement in learning
- Provide parents and scholars ongoing, credible, and useful feedback that conveys the expectations and achievement of identified standards of knowledge included in the curriculum

• Ensure alignment of curriculum, instruction, and assessment

#### **Grading KEY**

#### Kindergarten - 2nd Grade

Northwood uses skills-based report cards in grades K-2. The skills directly align to the PA Common Core Standards for each grade level. Through the identification of clear benchmarks, a student's knowledge and skills are measured on a continual basis, stretching students to perform at their highest level of potential. Teachers collect evidence of a child's achievement through observations, review of student work, discussions, projects, benchmarks, quizzes, and tests. Teachers record information about each child's progress on a frequent basis, analyze and compile that information, and use the data to evaluate each child's progress. All students are scored with the following scale:

(Standards Based Grading) (Standards are listed on Report Card)

LEARNING KEY				
Code	Description	Mastery Level		
S	Satisfactory	80%-100%		
Р	Progressing	50%-79%		
U	Unsatisfactory	Below 50%		
NA	Not Assessed			

#### 3rd Grade - 8th Grade

Learning KEY		
Code	Mastery Level	
Α	90% - 100%	
В	80% - 89%	
С	70% - 79%	
D	65% - 69%	
F	< 65% *	
N/A	Not Assessed	

#### \*Grading Floor

The grading floor is 60%. This will allow scholars the opportunity to recover from below standard grades.

#### **Required number of Grades**

#### Kindergarten - 2nd Grade

Category	Q1 Interim	Q1	Q2 Interim	Q2	Q3 Interim	Q3
Tests/ Quizzes	Diagnostic Results	6	9	12	15	18
Projects	n/a	1	-	2	-	3
Classwork/ Homework	n/a	20	30	40	50	60

#### 3rd Grade - 8th Grade

Category	Q1 Interim	Q1	Q2 Interim	Q2	Q3 Interim	Q3
Tests/ Quizzes	Diagnostic Results	10	15	20	25	30
Projects	n/a	1	-	2	-	3
Classwork/ Homework	10	20	30	40	50	60

A minimum of 10 grades should be entered per subject for each reporting period

#### **Recording of Grades**

- Grades should be entered into the gradebook weekly.
- By the middle of the grading period, half of the grades should be entered into the gradebook.
- Grades entered into the gradebook should be linked to key understandings, performance assessments, etc.

#### **Grading Category Weights**

Category	Percentage
Tests/ Quizzes	40%
Projects	30%
Classwork	20%
Homework	5%
Participation	5%

**Late Work and Missing Work Policy** - Teachers will provide scholars with opportunities to complete any missed assignments, when they have excused absences.

#### **Mastery Learning Policy**

Learning for mastery is embraced at Northwood Academy Charter School. Therefore, scholars will be given multiple opportunities to display mastery of skills and content. Some examples of mastery learning include revision of assessments, test retakes, and test corrections. Students will need to complete revisions or retakes by the end of the quarter, or within a timely fashion. Mastery Learning policies should be consistent with each grade level team.

- The Mastery Learning Policy across grade bands will include the following:
  - How mastery learning is allowed within the course (e.g. test corrections, test retakes, essay revisions, etc.).
    - Implement a consistent reassessment policy to include opportunities for reflection, revision and reassessment to ensure mastery of PA learning standards
  - What type(s) of assessments the policy applies to
  - How many attempts will be permitted
  - What scholars will be required to do, prior to doing test corrections, retaking tests, etc. (e.g., remediation, complete all related assignments, etc.).

#### Standards for Mastery

Standards for Mastery Mastery shall be determined as follows:

- Course assignments and benchmark assessments shall be used to determine student grades in a subject.
- An average of 65 or higher shall be considered a passing grade.
- Mastery of the skills necessary for success at the next level shall be validated by assessments that may either be incorporated into a benchmark assessment, or may be administered separately.

#### Formative Assessments

Formative assessments are progress monitoring tools that determine how to help scholars in the process of learning. These assessments are FOR learning. Not all formative assessments will be recorded in the gradebook (i.e. thumbs up/down, four corners, gallery walks, labs, observations, questioning, learning/response logs, graphic organizers, peer/self assessments, think, pair, share, etc. Make clearer

#### Summative Assessments

Summative assessments measure how much scholars have learned over time. They are assessments OF learning. They assess mastery of the standards and help determine effectiveness of instruction. Summative assessments should be created prior to instruction to capture and identify both content and process of learning that represent the desired outcomes (i.e. benchmark tests, projects, portfolios, etc.)

#### Homework and Independent Practice

Homework should serve a positive purpose for learning and support the instructional program.

- Homework should be a vehicle through which scholars practice, apply, and/or elaborate on content that they are currently learning. It may also be used as preparation for learning new content.
- Homework assignments should be relevant to content being studied with an emphasis on quality rather than quantity.
- Homework for advanced learners should focus on understanding content in greater depth and complexity and not on increased time commitments.
- When appropriate and practical, homework should be differentiated for scholars depending on their mastery of the objective(s) taught.

It is recognized that scholars vary significantly in the amount of time they need to complete given assignments. Teachers should estimate the amount of time the average student would require to complete an assignment. In general, homework across disciplines should not exceed 1 hour in grades five and through six and 1.5 hours at the middle school level To ensure that homework falls within Northwood Academy Charter School regulations, middle school teachers should plan for homework not to exceed 25 minutes per class block. Reading assignments are considered part of the homework load. Long-term projects may require additional time. Teachers should adjust daily homework assignments accordingly.

Homework for practice or preparation for instruction may account for no more than 5 percent of a quarter grade.

#### Make Up Work Following Absences

Makeup work for excused absences is graded and recorded by teachers without penalty to scholars. For an approved pre arranged absence, a student may request assignments in advance of the absence. Teachers will provide regular or alternative assignments in advance of the absence, when feasible. Teachers should ensure that scholars are provided with information regarding any missed assignments. Each day of absence affords at least one school day of makeup work opportunity. The period of time allowed to make up work may be extended at the discretion of the teacher/team.

#### Long-Term Excused Absence

Absence from school for an extended period may be excused for the following reasons:

- long-term illness (verified by a physician's note).
- hospitalization.
- death in the immediate family.
- unusual circumstances approved by the principal.

Makeup work is graded by the class teacher (or the homebound instructor); grades are recorded in the grade book without penalty to scholars.

#### **Unexcused Absences**

Unexcused absences do not mandate course failure. Students may make up work following unexcused absences, and teachers may help the student and parent or guardian identify missed work. Make up work is encouraged, so that scholars will be prepared for future instruction.

#### **Failing Grades**

Teachers who have students in their class in danger of failing a subject-area must adhere to the following requirements in order to validate the failing grade. While we realize that students are responsible for their grades, it is ultimately the responsibility of the teachers to ensure that they have worked diligently to ensure each student's success.

- Documentation of at least 2 completed phone calls home to a student's parent or guardian in order to address student's academic concerns
- At least 3 conferences with the student documented
- At least 1 conference with the student's parent documented
- Documentation of small group teaching log
- Adherence to NACS Grading Guidelines
- Interim Report indicating In Danger of Failing

Student behaviors will be reported on the report card as a Conduct Grade: S- Satisfactory, P- Progressing and,U-Unsatisfactory. Conduct Grades will be recorded daily when a teacher indicates a student's Level I, Level II or Level III behaviors.

#### Grading Students in Special Education Programs

Special education students will be graded by the Regular Education <u>and</u> Special Education teachers. This ensures that students are receiving grades within theregular education classroom aligned to both the grade level Common Core Standards <u>and</u> their special education needs, goals, and services. If the student has an accommodation or modification, the teachers work together to ensure that the grades follow the student's accommodations or modifications for assignments, projects and assessments.

Accommodations change the process or access which students use to achieve the same outcome/product/output as their regular education peers.

Modifications change the outcome/product/output that students are being expected to achieve.

Special Education teachers will have access to their students' gradebooks so they can enter special assignments as necessary. These will be assignments that are related to the classroom curriculum *and* specific IEP goals.

## **Report Cards**

The school year is divided into three marking periods. Each report card grade is its own independent, non-cumulative grade. At the end of the school year, a cumulative final grade is calculated by averaging each student's percentage grade from all three marking periods. Report card conferences will be held twice a year for all grades, once in December and once in March. All parents are expected to attend Report Card Conferences.

Conference appointments will be scheduled by each student's homeroom teacher. Teachers are expected to be available for parent report card conferences until 6:00 pm for the first of the scheduled days, and 3:00 pm for the second day. Report cards for the first and second semesters must be picked up at the school by the student's parent(s). Report cards will not be mailed home or sent home with a student and will not be shared until a conference is held. However, virtual report card conferences may be held at the parent's request if there is no other way for the parent to attend in person. Report card conferences in March are given on an as needed basis, due to academic, behavior or attendance concerns, or by parent request.

#### **Courses of Study/Advancements**

Northwood follows the PA Common Core Standards approved by the Pennsylvania Department of Education. Students are required to demonstrate the knowledge and skills necessary to read, write, compute, problem solve, think critically, apply technology, and communicate across all subject areas.

#### **Promotional Policy**

Overall, promotion requirements for all grades will be based on students' meeting grade-level knowledge and content standards. Specifically, they include:

- Increased understanding and demonstration of PA Common Core Standards
- Attain 90% attendance
- Scoring based on assessments

Students must be in attendance for at least 90 percent of the days school is in session in order to receive credit for the school year. If students do not meet this requirement, only an official attendance committee can consider grade level advancement. Students with excessive absences must be referred to MTSS in an ongoing manner.

Ultimately, the Principal will weigh all factors in deciding student promotion: assessment scores, grades, student work, behavioral data, writing samples, teacher observation, and other relevant information. The Principal may discuss with the Board of Trustees but he/she has the ultimate decision-making authority. Parents will be informed if a student is in danger of not being promoted. If a child is retained, a meeting must be held with the assistant principal, teacher, and parent in order to set future goals and ensure the child's success in the upcoming year. Parents may appeal to the Principal and/or the Board of Trustees.

#### **Report Card Comments**

All classroom teachers enter comments for each student in the student information system that generates report cards. A comment bank is available for use. Comments must be added by classroom teachers and specialists for any student receiving a D or an F in their class.

#### **Honor Roll**

Honor Roll gives students an opportunity to be recognized for outstanding academic achievements. The Honor Roll program is separated into two distinguished categories, Meritorious and Distinguished Honors.

Students must exhibit a high level of achievement in academics. Honor Roll is awarded to students in Grades 3-8 at the end of each trimester. according to the following guidelines:

#### **Meritorious Honors**

Students must receive a final marking period grade of 80 or above in all Academic and Specialist areas that promote learning, with no exceptions.

#### Distinguished Honors

Students must receive a final marking period grade of A in all Academic and Specialist areas, that promote learning, with no exceptions

A student's behavior must follow the Student Code of Conduct. However, a student's behavior will not be factored into the awarding academic grades.

#### Dean's List

When a staff member notices a student excelling in or improving a certain behavior, they will distribute positive points to that student via the Dean's List platform. Earning positive points will allow students to be eligible for raffles, rewards and other privileges. If a student does not put forth adequate effort in a particular area or refuses to comply with any school rule or expectation, they will receive negative points in that area. Students are given opportunities to improve their behavior as appropriate prior to receiving demerits. Students may receive multiple demerits for continuous non-compliant behaviors that are a detriment to themselves or the learning community at large.

Positive and negative points can be earned any time students are under Northwood supervision including during arrival, after school, on the bus and during off-site school sponsored events. Consequences for excessive negative points include, but are not limited to, loss of privileges, lunch detention, after school detention and or suspension. A student's performance ratings for *Skills and Behaviors that Promote Learning* on the report card can be affected by the number of points accumulated throughout a marking period.

## Annual Public Notice of Special Education Services and Programs and Rights for Students with Disabilities And Notification of Rights under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act

All children with disabilities residing in the Commonwealth, regardless of the severity of their disabilities, and who are in need of special education and related services, are to be located, identified and evaluated. This responsibility is required by a federal law called the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004, 20 U.S.C. 1400 *et. seq.* ("IDEA").

Chapter 711 of Title 22 ("Chapter 711") of the Pennsylvania Code requires the publication of a notice to parents regarding public awareness activities sufficient to inform parents of the Northwood Academy Charter School ("the Charter School") of available special education services and programs and how to request those services and programs as well, as of systematic screening activities that lead to the identification, location and evaluation of children with disabilities enrolled in the Charter School.

In addition, the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 ("FERPA"), which protects confidentiality, requires educational agencies to notify parents annually of their confidentiality rights.

The Charter School fulfills its duties with this Annual Notice and has incorporated several sections of the PaTTAN Procedural Safeguards Notice and other applicable guidelines from the Pennsylvania Department of Education ("PDE") into the Board-approved Child Find Notice and Policies and Procedures.

## <u>The Charter School directs parents to the procedural safeguards notice from PaTTAN</u> <u>available at the Charter School's main office for additional information regarding rights and</u> <u>services.</u>

Parents may contact the Charter School's **Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee** at any time to request a copy of the Procedural Safeguards Notice or with any other questions about special education services, screenings, policies, or procedures. The Procedural Safeguards Notice is provided to parents of special education students by the Charter School once per school year or: (1) upon initial referral or parent request for evaluation; (2) upon receipt of the first State complaint under 34 CFR §§300.151 through 300.153 and upon receipt of the first due process complaint under §300.507 in a school year; (3) when a decision is made to take a disciplinary action that constitutes a change of placement of a child with a disability because of a violation of a code of student conduct; and (4) upon parent request. [34 CFR §300.504(a)].

The purpose of this Annual Notice is to comply with the Charter School's obligations under Chapter 711 of Title 22 of the Pennsylvania Code and to describe: (1) the types of disabilities that might qualify the child for special education; (2) the special education programs and related services that are available; (3) the process by which the Charter School screens and evaluates such students to determine eligibility; (4) the special rights that pertain to such children and their parents or legal guardians; and (5) the confidentiality rights that pertain to student information.

A copy of this Annual Notice in its entirety is also available on the Charter School's website at: https://vahara-o2-public.s3.amazonaws.com/media/94035/NACS-Child-Find-Notice\_August-2021.pdf

## **Qualifying for Special Education Related Services**

Under IDEA children qualify for special education and related services if they have one or more of the following disabilities and, as a result, need special education and related services: intellectual disability; hearing impairment, including deafness; speech or language impairment; visual impairment, including blindness; emotional disturbance; orthopedic impairment; autism; traumatic brain injury; other health impairment; specific learning disability; deaf-blindness; or multiple disabilities.

IDEA provides legal definitions of the disabilities that qualify a student for special education and related

services. Such definitions may differ from those terms used in medical or clinical practice or common usage.

#### Section 504 Services

Under Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 ("Section 504"), some school-age children with disabilities who do not meet the eligibility criteria outlined above might be eligible for special protections and for adaptations and accommodations in instruction, facilities, and activities. Children are entitled to such protections, adaptations, and accommodations if they have a mental or physical disability that substantially limits or prohibits participation in or access to an aspect of the school program and otherwise qualify under the applicable state and federal laws, including Chapter 711 and Section 504.

Charter Schools must ensure that qualified handicapped students have equal opportunity to participate in the school's program and activities to the maximum extent appropriate for each individual student. In compliance with applicable state and federal laws, the Charter School provides to each qualifying protected handicapped student without discrimination or cost to the student or family, those related aids, services or accommodations which are needed to provide equal opportunity to participate in and obtain the benefits of the school program and activities to the maximum extent appropriate to the student's abilities and to the extent required by the laws.

These services and protections for "protected handicapped students" may be distinct from those applicable to eligible or thought-to-be eligible students. The Charter School or the parent may initiate an evaluation if they believe a student is a protected handicapped student. For further information on the evaluation procedures and provision of services to protected handicapped students, parents should contact the school.

#### Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE")

The Charter School ensures that children with disabilities are educated to the maximum extent possible in the regular education environment or "least restrictive environment." To the maximum extent appropriate, students with disabilities are educated with students who are not disabled. Special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of students with disabilities from the general educational environment occurs only when the nature or severity of the disability is such that education in general education classes, even with the use of supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. Programs and services available to students with disabilities might include: (1) regular class placement with supplementary aides and services provided as needed in that environment; (2) regular class placement for most of the school day with itinerant services by a special education teacher either in or out of the regular classroom; (3) regular class placement for most of the school day with instruction provided by a special education teacher in a resource classroom; (4) part time special education class placement in a regular public school or alternative setting; and (5) special education class placement or special education services provided outside the regular class for most or all of the school day, either in a regular public school or alternative setting. This is a team decision.

Depending on the nature and severity of the disability and least restrictive environment consideration, the

Charter School could provide special education programs and services as determined appropriate by the IEP team, in locations such as: (1) the classroom/building the child would attend if not disabled; (2) an alternative regular class either in or outside the school; (3) a special education center operated by an Intermediate Unit; (4) an approved private school or other private facility licensed to serve children with disabilities; (5) a residential school; (6) approved out-of-state program; or (7) the home. This is a team decision.

#### Screening and Evaluation Procedures for Children to Determine Eligibility

The Charter School has established a system of screening which may include pre-referral intervention services to accomplish the following:

A) Identification and provision of initial screening for students prior to referral for a special education evaluation.

B) Provision of peer support for teachers and other staff members to assist them in working effectively with students in the general education curriculum.

C) Identification of students who may need special education services and programs. The screening process includes:

Hearing and vision screening in accordance with Section 1402 of the Public School Code of 1949 (24 P. S. § 14-1402) for the purpose of identifying students with hearing or vision difficulty so that they can be referred for assistance or recommended for evaluation for special education.

Screening at reasonable intervals to determine whether all students are performing based on grade- appropriate standards in core academic subjects.

The Charter School has established and implements procedures to locate, identify, and evaluate children suspected of being eligible for special education. These procedures involve screening activities that may also include, but are not limited to: review of data and student records; motor screening; and speech and language screening. The Charter School assesses the current achievement and performance of the child, designs school-based interventions, and assesses the effectiveness of interventions. If the concern can be addressed without special education services, or is the result of limited English proficiency or appropriate instruction, a recommendation may be made for interventions other than a multidisciplinary team evaluation.

The screening of a student by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate instructional strategies for curriculum implementation should not be considered to be an evaluation for eligibility for special education and related services. Parents have the right to request a multidisciplinary team evaluation at any time, regardless of the outcome of the screening process.

Except as indicated above or otherwise announced publicly, screening activities take place on-going at periods throughout the school year. Screening is conducted at the Charter School, unless other arrangements are necessary or arranged.

#### Evaluation

An evaluation under IDEA involves the use of a variety of assessment tools and strategies to gather relevant functional, developmental, and academic information about the child, including information provided by the parent that may assist in determining whether the child is a child with a disability and the content of the child's IEP. The Charter School does not use any single measure or assessment as a sole criterion for determining whether a child is a child with a disability and for determining an appropriate educational program for the child. Technically sound instruments are used to assess the relative contribution of cognitive and behavioral factors in addition to physical or developmental factors.

Parental consent must be obtained by the Charter School prior to conducting an initial evaluation to determine if the child qualifies as a child with a disability, and before providing special education and related services to the child. Parental consent for an evaluation shall not be construed as consent for their child to receive special education and related services. The screening of a child by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate instructional strategies for curriculum implementation is not considered to be an evaluation for eligibility for special education and related services; therefore, parental consent is not required in this instance.

The law contains additional provisions and due process protections regarding situations in which parental consent for an initial evaluation is absent or refused. This is discussed more fully below and in the PaTTAN Procedural Safeguards Notice. If you have any questions about where to obtain a copy of the PaTTAN Procedural Safeguards Notice, kindly contact the Director of Special Education.

#### **Educational Placement**

The determination of whether a student is eligible for special education is made by an IEP team. The IEP team includes: the parents of a child with a disability; not less than one regular education teacher, if the child is, or may be, participating in the regular education environment; not less than one special education teacher, or when appropriate, not less than one special education provider; a representative of the Charter School who is qualified to provide or supervise the provision of specially designed instruction to meet the unique needs of children with disabilities, is knowledgeable about the general education curriculum, and is knowledgeable about the availability of resources of the Charter School; an individual who can interpret the instructional implications of evaluation results, who may be a member of the team described above; other individuals, at the discretion of the parent or the agency, who have knowledge or special expertise regarding the child, including related services personnel as

appropriate; and whenever appropriate, a child with a disability.

#### Parents and Surrogate Parents

For purposes of this Notice, the Charter School considers parents to be biological or adoptive parents of a child; a foster parent; a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent, or authorized to make educational decisions for the child; an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent (including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative) with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare; or a surrogate parent.

A surrogate parent must be appointed when no parent can be identified; a public agency, after reasonable efforts, cannot locate a parent; the child is a ward of the State under the laws of Pennsylvania, or the child is an unaccompanied homeless youth as defined by the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 11434a(6). A person selected as a surrogate parent must not be an employee of the SEA, the Charter School, or any other agency that is involved in the education or care of the child; has no personal or professional interest that conflicts with the interest of the child the surrogate parent represents; and has knowledge and skills that ensure adequate representation of the child. The surrogate parent may represent the child in all matters relating to the identification, evaluation, and educational placement of the child and the provision of FAPE to the child. Reasonable efforts must be made to ensure the assignment of a surrogate parent not more than 30 days after it is determined that the child needs a surrogate parent.

#### **Prior Written Notice**

The Charter School will notify the parent within a reasonable time before the Charter School:

In Pennsylvania, prior written notice is provided by means of a Prior Written Notice Form/Notice of Recommended Educational Placement ("NOREP"). You should be given reasonable notice of this proposal or refusal so that if you do not agree with the Charter School's decision you may take appropriate action. Reasonable Notice means ten (10) days.

#### **Parental Consent**

Consent means (34 CFR §300.9):

A) The parent has been fully informed of all information relevant to the activity for which consent is sought, in his or her native language, or through another mode of communication;

B) The parent understands and agrees, in writing, to the carrying out of the activity for which his or her consent is sought, and the consent describes that activity and lists the record (if any) that will be released and to whom; and

C) The parent understands that the granting of consent is voluntary on the part of the

parent and may be revoked at any time.

If a parent revokes consent, that revocation is not retroactive (i.e., it does **not** negate an action that has occurred after the consent was given and before the consent was revoked).

If the parent revokes consent in writing for their child's receipt of special education services after the child is initially provided special education and related services, the Charter School is **not** required to amend the child's education records to remove any references to the child's receipt of special education and related services because of the revocation of consent.

#### WHEN IS PARENTAL CONSENT NEEDED?

#### **Initial Evaluations**

The Charter School cannot conduct an initial evaluation of a child to determine whether they are eligible under Part B of the IDEA to receive special education and related services without first providing parents with prior written notice of the proposed action and without obtaining parental consent as described above, under the heading Parental Consent.

Charter School will make reasonable efforts to obtain parents informed consent for an initial evaluation to decide whether the child is a child with a disability. Parental consent for initial evaluation does not mean that parent has also given consent to start providing special education and related services to the child. If parent has refused to provide consent or failed to respond to a request to provide consent for an initial evaluation, the Charter School may, but are not required to, seek to conduct an initial evaluation of the child by utilizing mediation or due process complaint, resolution meeting, and impartial due process hearing procedures. The Charter School will not violate obligations to locate, identify, and evaluate the child if an evaluation of the child is not pursued in these circumstances.

#### Special rules for Initial Evaluation of Wards of the State

Under Pennsylvania law, 34 CFR § 300.45 if a child is designated a ward of the state, the whereabouts of the parent are not known or the rights of the parent have been terminated in accordance with State law. Therefore, someone other than the parent has been designated to make educational decisions for the child.

#### **Initial Placement in Special Education**

Charter School must obtain informed parental consent before providing special education and related services to a child for the first time. The Charter School must make reasonable efforts to obtain informed parental consent before providing special education and related services to a child for the first time.

If parents do not respond to a request to provide consent for their child to receive special education and related services for the first time, or if parents refuse to give such consent, the Charter School may not use the procedural safeguards (i.e. mediation, due process complaint, resolution meeting, or an impartial due process hearing) in order to obtain agreement or a ruling that the special education and related services as recommended by the child's IEP Team may be provided to the child without parental consent.

If parents refuse to give consent for their child to start receiving special education and related services, or if they do not respond to a request to provide such consent and the Charter School does not provide the child with the special education and related services for which consent is sought, the Charter School:

- A) Is not in violation of the requirement to make FAPE available to the child for its failure to provide those services to the child; and
  - B) Is not required to have an IEP meeting or develop an IEP for the child for the special education and related services for which consent was requested.

#### Reevaluations

The Charter School must obtain informed parental consent before a child is reevaluated, unless:

A) Charter School took reasonable steps to obtain parental consent of a child's reevaluation; and

B) Parent did not respond.

Parental consent is <u>**not**</u> required before:

- A) Reviewing existing data as part of an evaluation or a reevaluation; or
- B) Administering a test or other evaluation that is administered to all children unless, before administration of that test or evaluation, consent is required of parents of all children.

If parents refuse to consent to their child's reevaluation, the Charter School may, but is not required to, pursue the child's reevaluation by using the mediation, due process complaint, resolution meeting, and impartial due process hearing procedures to seek to override parental refusal to consent to a child's reevaluation. As with initial evaluations, the Charter School will not violate obligations under Part B of the IDEA if it declines to pursue the reevaluation in this manner.

The Charter School may <u>not</u> use parental refusal to consent to one service or activity in order to deny parents or their children any other service, benefit, or activity.

#### WHAT EFFORTS WILL CHARTER SCHOOL MAKE TO OBTAIN PARENTAL CONSENT?

The Charter School will take steps to ensure that one or both of the parents of a child with a disability are present at each IEP Team meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate, including:

o Notifying parents of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have the opportunity to attend; and

o Scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed upon time and place.

If the Charter School is unable to convince parents to attend an IEP Team meeting, the meeting may still be conducted; however, the Charter School must maintain documentation of reasonable efforts to obtain parental consent for initial evaluations, to provide special education and related services for the first time, for reevaluation and to locate parents of wards of the State for initial evaluations. The documentation will include a record of attempts in these areas, such as:

o Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls

- o Copies of correspondence sent to the parents and any responses received; and
- o Detailed records of visits made to the parent's home or place of employment and the results of those visits.

#### Disagreements with an Evaluation

#### General

As described below, parents have the right to obtain an independent educational evaluation (IEE) of their child if they disagree with the evaluation of their child that was obtained by the Charter School. The Charter School must provide parents who request an IEE with information about where they may obtain an IEE and about the Charter School's criteria that apply to IEEs.

#### Definitions

1) **Independent educational evaluation** means an evaluation conducted by a qualified examiner who is not employed by the Charter School and responsible for the education of the child in question.

2) **Public expense** means that the Charter School either pays for the full cost of the evaluation or ensures that the evaluation is otherwise provided at no cost to parent, consistent with the provisions of Part B of the IDEA, which allow each State to use whatever State, local, Federal and private sources of support are available in the State to meet the requirements of Part B of the Act.

#### Parent right to evaluation at public expense

1) A parent has the right to an IEE at the public expense if the parent disagrees with an evaluation obtained by the Charter School, subject to the following conditions:

2) If a parent requests an IEE at public expense, the public agency must, without unnecessary delay,

either:

- a) File a due process complaint to request a hearing to show that its evaluation is appropriate; or
- b) An IEE is provided at public expense, unless the Charter School demonstrates in a hearing that the evaluation obtained by the parent did not meet the Charter School criteria.
- c) If Charter School files a due process complaint notice to request a hearing and the final decision is that the Charter School's evaluation is appropriate, the parent still has the right to an independent educational evaluation, but not at public expense.

If a parent requests an IEE, Charter School may ask for the parent's reason why he or she objects to the public evaluation. However, the Charter School may not require the parent to provide an explanation and may not unreasonably delay either providing the IEE at public expense or filing a due process complaint to request a due process hearing to defend the public evaluation. A parent is entitled to only one IEE at public expense each time Charter School conducts an evaluation with which the parent disagrees.

#### **Parent-Initiated Evaluations**

If a parent obtains an IEE at public expense or shares an evaluation with the Charter School that was obtained at private expense, the results of the evaluation:

- Must be considered by Charter School, if it meets Charter School criteria, in any decision made with respect to the provision of FAPE to the child; and
- May be presented by any party as evidence at a due process hearing regarding the child.

# ANNUAL NOTICE OF RIGHTS REGARDING STUDENT RECORDS: CONSENT FOR DISCLOSURE OF PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE INFORMATION (34 CFR §300.622)

Unless the information is contained in education records, and the disclosure is authorized without parental consent under FERPA, parental consent must be obtained before personally identifiable information is disclosed to parties other than officials of participating agencies. Except under the circumstances specified below, parental consent is not required before personally identifiable Part B of the IDEA. Parental consent, or consent of an eligible child who has reached the age of majority under State law, must be obtained before personally identifiable information is released to officials of participating agencies providing or paying for transition services.

#### Application of the Code of Conduct

The Northwood Academy Charter School Code of Conduct applies to each Student enrolled and attending the school. Students may be subject to the consequences outlined in this handbook under the following conditions:

- Students in attendance at Northwood Academy
- Students enroute to Northwood or home from Northwood Academy
- Students at off-campus/ off- hours Northwood Academy sponsored events
- Students engaged in off-campus/ off-hours actions that cause disruptions to Northwood's Academic program in school
- Students using school-issued technology inside or outside of the school building and school day

#### **Uniform Policy**

Students are expected to attend school wearing the Northwood Academy Charter School uniform, daily with the exception of dress down days. Students should be dressed in a fully tucked maroon **Northwood polo, khaki pants or skort, and traditional sneakers**. Jewelry and accessories should not disrupt instruction or pose a risk to safety therefore, large hoops, bracelets and oversized fashion accessories should be avoided. Students may wear the **Northwood sweatshirt, or cardigan** over the Northwood polo. While it is acceptable for Students to protect themselves from the weather, Students may not cover their head with a hood during the school day at Northwood Academy. Students must wear proper gym attire which includes the **Northwood gym suit or black sweatpants.** Gym attire is specifically for phys ed.

Students are allowed to wear religious head coverings and clothes. Teachers must encourage Students to wear their uniform by awarding points for being responsible using the Dean's List platform. Each day a member of the climate staff will record Students who are out of uniform and issue a consequence.

**Dress Down**- Occasionally, Students are rewarded with an opportunity to dress in their regular clothes instead of Northwood's uniform. Students with this privilege will receive a notice of privilege to provide to their family. When Students arrive at school, they will receive a dated wrist band that signals permission to dress down. Students who arrive at school dressed down on Dress Down Days without permission will receive a uniform shirt and a demerit.

On Dress Down Days, Students' dress should be school appropriate. Students should not wear ripped/distressed jeans that reveal body parts that would otherwise be covered when wearing the Northwood uniform. Students should not wear tank tops, or spaghetti strapped shirts. Students should refrain from wearing items that expose the stomach area. Students' pants must rest at their waist and cover all private body parts. Any graphics should be free of lewd or profane language and imagery or illegal activities.

#### Cell Phones & Items of Value

While we encourage Students to leave their cell phones and items of value at home, we understand that families want to be in contact with their children during their travels. While at school, Students K-4 personal cell phones should be turned off and out of sight. Students in grades 5-8 must turn in their phones in homeroom classes for safekeeping during the school day. Should a student's cell phone become visible during the school day, the school administrator or dean will confiscate and secure it until the Student's parent or guardian retrieves it.

#### Positive Behavior Intervention & Support at Northwood Academy

Positive Behavior Intervention & Support (PBIS) is an evidenced-based multi-tiered system of support that supports Students in demonstrating positive behaviors school-wide. The foundational aspects of PBIS are a shared vision for our Student's behavior, a consistent response to positive and negative behavior and evidence based interventions to support our Students' needs.

Tier 1- Consists of ensuring that all Students demonstrate mastery of our school-wide behavior expectations and rewarding them for demonstrating expectations signed with the Bulldog way. All Students participate in tier 1 as all are expected to adhere to school-wide policies. Each month, Students who earn enough points will be invited to participate in an event that rewards them for their positive behavior.

Tier 2- When Students demonstrate that they are displaying difficulty meeting school-wide behavior expectations, we provide them with additional support at the tier 2 level. The decision to move Students to the tier 2 level is based on school-wide discipline data and teacher recommendation. Each student receiving support at the tier 2 level will engage in activities that provide additional guidance and positive feedback toward meeting school-wide behavior expectations. An example of support at the tier 2 level is providing Students with a daily report and weekly check-in/ check-out mentor.

Tier 3- Students at the tier 3 level will receive intensive support outlined in a data-driven positive behavior support plan (PBSP) developed by staff members with specialized expertise in behavior analysis and modification.

Students move between tiers based on data in 6-week cycles. Our goal is to ensure that all of our Students are successful at tier 1.

We encourage families to partner with us in supporting our Students in meeting behavior expectations by discussing the Northwood Norms.

# Northwood Academy School-wide Behavior Expectations

## The Bulldog Way

Northwood Norms Behavior Matrix	Be Safe	Be Respectful	Be Responsible
Admit & Dismissal	<ul> <li>Remain in your assigned area when you arrive</li> <li>Use hands, feet and objects properly</li> <li>Take care of yourself</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Use respectful language</li> <li>Follow directives</li> <li>Take care of one another</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Arrive on time</li> <li>Move quickly to your destination</li> <li>Take care of our school building</li> </ul>
Cafeteria	<ul> <li>Use hands, feet and objects properly</li> <li>Remain seated at your table</li> <li>Take care of yourself</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Use respectful language</li> <li>Follow directives</li> <li>Take care of one another</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Get permission to move about the cafeteria</li> <li>Take care of the cafeteria by tidying up and disposing trash properly</li> </ul>
Classrooms	<ul> <li>Use hands, feet and objects properly</li> <li>Follow classroom procedures</li> <li>Alert your teacher if you need help solving a problem</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Use respectful language</li> <li>Follow directives</li> <li>Take care of one another</li> <li>Share materials</li> <li>Listen to the ideas of others and respond with care</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Complete all instructional tasks</li> <li>Submit instructional tasks</li> <li>Use materials gently and return them properly</li> </ul>

	• Take care of yourself		
Halls	<ul> <li>Use hands, feet and objects properly</li> <li>Walk to the right of the hallway</li> <li>Take care of yourself</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Speak at a whisper or low voice</li> <li>Use respectful language</li> <li>Follow directives</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Move quickly to your destination</li> <li>Ensure displays remain beautifully intact</li> <li>Ensure you always have a hall pass</li> </ul>
Gymnatoriu m	<ul> <li>Use hands, feet and objects properly</li> <li>Remain seated properly with your bottom on the seat and feet on the floor</li> <li>Take care of yourself</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Follow directives</li> <li>Use respectful language</li> <li>Listen and engage in the activity properly</li> <li>Raise your hand if you need attention</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Enter and exit quietly</li> <li>Allow others to enjoy the program by remaining quiet and engaging properly</li> </ul>
Restroom	<ul> <li>Use hands, feet and objects properly</li> <li>Use stalls properly with one person at a time</li> <li>Take care of yourself</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Use respectful language</li> <li>Knock on stall before entering</li> <li>Stay in your own space while in the restroom</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Take care of business quickly</li> <li>Place trash in the trash can</li> <li>Move quickly so that others get an opportunity</li> <li>Use soap and water properly</li> <li>Ensure you have your hall pass</li> </ul>
Recess Yard	<ul> <li>Use hands, feet and objects properly</li> <li>Alert an adult if there is a problem</li> </ul>	<ul><li>Follow directives</li><li>Use respectful language</li><li>Share materials</li></ul>	<ul> <li>Use recess materials properly</li> <li>Return materials properly</li> <li>Alert an adult if you need help solving a problem</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>Enter and exit walking calmly</li> <li>Remain in the assigned area</li> <li>Take care of yourself</li> </ul>		
Main Office/ Office Space	<ul> <li>Use hands, feet and objects properly</li> <li>Enter and exit walking calmly</li> <li>Take care of yourself</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Use respectful language</li> <li>Speak in a low voice</li> <li>Wait your turn to for assistance</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Move quickly to your destination</li> <li>Use materials properly</li> <li>Ensure you have your hall pass</li> </ul>
School Bus	<ul> <li>Move directly to your assigned seat</li> <li>Remain seated while the bus is moving</li> <li>Keep hands, and objects inside of the bus</li> <li>Keep feet on the floor</li> <li>Use an inside voice</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Follow the bus driver's directives</li> <li>Use respectful language</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Board the bus properly</li> <li>Deboard the bus at your assigned destination</li> <li>Throw your waste in the can</li> <li>Remember to take your belongings with you.</li> </ul>

## Merits & Demerits

To increase the occurrence of positive behavior and mitigate challenging behavior, teachers will assign Students merits or demerits in Dean's List for grades 5-8, or points in ClassDojo for Students in grades K-4.

Safe Merit- Using hands, feet & objects properly	Safe Demerit- Using hands, feet & objects improperly
Safe Merit- Alerting an adult to a problem	Safe Demerit- Instigating an issue

Safe: Merit- Walking properly in the hallway	Safe Demerit- Walking improperly in the hallway (running, jumping, horseplay)	
Respect Merit- Using respectful language	Respect Demerit- Using profanity	
Respect Merit- Following through on directives	Respect Demerit- Failure to comply with directives	
Respect Merit- Sharing materials	Responsibility Demerit- Eating outside of the lunchroom (without permission)	
Responsible Merit- Prepared (lesson materials, charged chromebook, writing tool)	Responsibility Demerit- Unprepared (lesson materials, chromebook, writing tool)	
Responsibility Merit- Arriving to class on-time	Responsibility Demerit- Late for class	
Respect Merit- Using inside voice in the school building	Respect Demerit- Using outside voice inside the school building (yelling)	
Responsibility Merit- Proper hall pass use	Responsibility Demerit- Improper use of a hall pass (use hall pass to go to a place other than assigned. Failure to return within a reasonable time)	
Respect Merit- Helping a fellow community member		
Responsibility Merit- Proper Northwood Uniform	Responsibility Demerit- Improper Dress (Hoodie, out of uniform)	

### **Restorative Practices at Northwood Academy**

At Northwood Academy, we believe in the power of developing positive social connections between individuals and our school community. We know that when Students demonstrate challenging behavior it is often a signal for help and connection. When a Student demonstrates challenging behavior that causes harm to an individual, or school community, we facilitate the repair of this relationship with restorative practices. Facilitating a meeting between two Students experiencing an issue to hear one another's side of the story, accept responsibility for their part and decide how they will engage while in the school is an example of a restorative practice.

When Students violate Northwood Academy's code of conduct, we couple an appropriate punitive intervention with a restorative action. We believe that coupling the two actions will reduce challenging

behavior and mitigate issues between Students because they are accountable for their actions and have the opportunity to repair harm done to an individual or the school community.

At Northwood Academy, we believe that the classroom teacher is the greatest asset and impactful factor in cultivating a positive learning environment. We aim to support our teachers as they manage level 1 behavior infractions in the classroom by utilizing our school-wide behavior system. In order for teachers to maintain authority over their class, we encourage teachers to intervene when challenging behaviors arise early and act consistently in response to behavior infractions.

#### Behavior Infractions at Northwood Academy

#### Level 1- Infractions Managed with In-Class Interventions

At tier 1, our goal is to mitigate infractions while building and repairing relationships. Mitigating infractions at this level must honor and have the least impact on instructional time. To ensure that tier 1, all school members must respond to the infraction in the moment with positive language and an intervention that aligns with our behavior matrix. Level 1 infractions should not be escalated beyond the school member observing the infraction unless support arranging an intervention is needed or otherwise noted within the behavior matrix.

Infraction	Description
1. Profane Language	Students who curse or use insulting or sexually explicit language/ gestures. This refers to profanity used peer to peer .
2. Refusal to adhere to school-wide behavior expectations	<ul> <li>Students who fail to comply with established school-wide expectations after redirection</li> <li>Examples Include: <ul> <li>Running in the hallway</li> <li>Horseplay</li> <li>Unpreparedness</li> <li>Uniform infractions</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
3. Refusal to adhere to cell phone policy	Students observed with their cell phone during the school day (after morning meeting and before closing circle)
4. Hall Pass Abuse	Students who abuse their hall pass by using it to go to places that they were not directed or allowed as indicated by the hall pass.

	Students who abuse hall pass by extending time. For example: a student is sent to the restroom at 10:45 am and returns to class at 11:00am. The student is assigned to the 2nd floor bathroom but is observed on the 1st floor in a different wing.
5. Cheating	Students who submit or intend to submit work that is not their own, this includes using artificial intelligence without teacher's approval .
6. Inappropriate touch	Students who engage in unwanted touching of another school community member either with their own body or with an object. Examples may include hugging or other touching that may not be sexual in nature.
7. Class Cutting	Students who are present in school but did not attend class without permission from the teacher of record or school administrator <i>Note: Only the teacher or record, school nurse, or school administrator can excuse a student from class. Students may not be excused from class by a teacher that is not responsible for instruction during the student's assigned instructional block.</i>

### Wednesday Afternoon Detention Matrix

- 4 demerits 12:15-1:15 pm 4-8 demerits 1:15- 2:15 pm
- 8-12 demerits 2:15-3:15 pm
- Students who earn 12 or more demerits may serve detention and receive a mandatory parent conference letter.

Transportation is not provided for students attending detention.

## Level 2 Infractions- Referral Level

Infractions at this level have the potential to pose serious consequences to our school community. Infractions at this level must be escalated to the Dean of Students for mitigation. Our goal is to emphasize the serious nature of the infraction, restore community and honor instructional time. Pursuant to the required School's Memorandum of Understanding with local law enforcement, Level 2 infractions may require reporting to local law enforcement.

Infraction	Description
1. Inappropriate use an electronic device	<ul> <li>Users must not use equipment to harass, threaten, deceive, intimidate, offend, embarrass, or annoy any individual.</li> <li>Users must not post, publish, or display any defamatory, inaccurate, violent, abusive, profane, or sexually-oriented material.</li> <li>Users must not use obscene, profane, lewd, vulgar, rude, or threatening language.</li> <li>Users must not use obscene, profane, lewd, vulgar, rude, or threatening language.</li> <li>Users must not use obscene, profane, lewd, vulgar, rude, or threatening language.</li> <li>Users must not use obscene, profane, lewd, vulgar, rude, or threatening language.</li> <li>Users must not use obscene, profane, lewd, vulgar, rude, or threatening language.</li> <li>Users must not use a photograph, image, video, or likeness of any student, or employee without the express permission of that individual and of the principal.</li> <li>Users must not use school equipment to create any site or post any photo, image, or video of another except with the express permission of that individual and the principal.</li> <li>Maintaining or posting material to a Web site or blog that threatens a likelihood of substantial disruption in school, including harming or interfering with the rights of other Students or teachers to participate fully in school or extracurricular activities is a violation of the Acceptable Use Policy and subject to the disciplinary measure found herein.</li> <li>Users must not attempt to circumvent system security, guess password, or in any way gain access to secured resources, another person's files, or another person's password.</li> <li>Users must not move, repair, reconfigure, modify, or attach external devices to the systems without permission.</li> <li>Users must not deliberately visit a site known for unacceptable material or any material that is not in support of educational objectives.</li> <li>Students must not access social networking sites or gaming sites, except for educational purposes under teacher supervision.</li> <li>Users are not to plag</li></ul>
2. Forgery/Alteration of grades, excuse notes, or school documents	Students who reproduce the signature of another with the intent to deceive or who alter official school records such as grades, attendance or reports.
3. Intentional Destruction of Property (Totaling less than \$100)	Students who damage or deface school property or the personal property of another school community member. If the destruction of property was accidental, this should be taken into consideration when determining a consequence.

4. Intentional	Students who damage or deface school property or the personal property of another school
Destruction of	community member. If the destruction of property was accidental, this should be taken into
property (Totaling	consideration when determining a consequence.
\$100 or more)	
5. Theft (\$100 or less)	Students who take school property or the personal property of another school community member.
6. Mutual fighting	Students who willingly engage in a one on one physical altercation.
8. Mutual group	Students who willingly engage in a physical altercation with multiple willing participants. This is a
fight	physical altercation in which none of the participants are identified as aggressors or victims.
9. Instigation	Students whose actions bring about a fight or participate in an assault by multiple Students on one
and/or	or more other Students. This is a physical confrontation in which participants can clearly be
participation	identified as aggressors and victims. Including but not limited to Gang Violence.
in a group	
assault	
10. Simple assault	Students who intentionally and without provocation, hit, punch, or kick a school community
	member. This does not include accidental physical contact such as a teacher being struck while
	breaking up a fight.
11. Inappropriate	Recommend removal of this infraction as students who engage in repeated unwanted touching are
touch	subject to Title IX.
12. Bullying	Bullying is repeated intentional conduct (physical, psychological, verbal, nonverbal, written, or
	electronic) that is directed at another Students or Students. It could happen in or outside of a school
	setting, is severe, persistent or pervasive, and has one of the following effects: (1) substantially
	interfere with a Student's education, (2) creates a hostile learning environment, or (3) substantially
	disrupts school operation. Bullying occurs within an interpersonal relationship where there is an
	imbalance of power (e.g., one person is physically larger, stronger, mentally quicker, or socially more
	powerful).
	• Administrators are to employ the Response to Reports of Bullying at Northwood protocol

13. Cyber Bullying	Bullying occurs through electronic communication devices including but not limited to social networking, e-mail, instant messaging, text messages, tweets, blogs, photo and video sharing,chat rooms, dash boards, or web sites.
14. Sexual Misconduct	Students who engage in a consensual sexual act on school property OR any unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature that does not meet the definition of sexual harassment.
15. Threats/ Intimidation	Students who introduce fear or a sense of inferiority in another school community member. This includes threatening to engage in an act that causes harm. Threats can be made verbally, in writing, electronically, or with gestures. Including but not limited to Gang Violence.
16. Threatening Mass Violence	Students who threaten to engage in an act that causes serious physical harm or creates a substantial risk of serious physical harm to members of a school community. For example, threatening to engage in a school shooting or bombing. All Students in violation of this rule MUST be referred to the counselor.
17. Possession and/or use of tobacco or electronic smoking devices	Students who use or possess tobacco or any electronic smoking device on schoolproperty or at school sponsored events. This includes but is not limited to products containing tobacco, electronic cigarettes, cigars, vaping kits, and hookah. All Students in violation of this rule MUST be referred to the counselor.
18. Possession of incendiary devices and/or explosives	Students who are found to be in possession of incendiary devices such as matches, lighters, fireworks, bombs, firecrackers, bombshells, and/or other explosives.
19. Use of profane language toward faculty or staff member	Students who observed using profane language, or gestures towards a faculty or staff member.

20. Vandalism	Student's action involving deliberate destruction of or damage to Northwood or peer's property
21. Pre-Fight/	Students who engage in aggressive behavior toward others with the intent to cause harm.
Posturing to	
fight	

## Level 3 Infractions- Referral

Infractions at this level are usually minimal but pose a serious threat to the well-being of our school community members. While we intend to be proactive in mitigating these behaviors with Level 1 and Level 2 interventions we will respond with consistency and judiciousness to Level 3 infractions. Infractions at Level 3 must be escalated to the Dean of Students as well as the Administrative team to determine the appropriate intervention and ensure our Students's due process. Infractions at this level can be assigned an out of school suspension of 3-10 school days, and or up to expulsion . Pursuant to the required School's Memorandum of Understanding with local law enforcement, Level 3 infractions require reporting to local law enforcement

Infraction	Description
<ol> <li>Inappropriate use an electronic device to instigate bullying or harassment</li> </ol>	Students who engage in acts including ,but not limited to, sexting (sending sexual images or videos), videotaping someone in a place where they have an expectation of privacy, or posting content that <b>negatively impacts the school community</b> via any social media/internet platform. This includes the inappropriate use of Chromebooks or other Northwood Academy devices.
2. Unauthorized Entry Into School Property	Students who gain entry to a school building or who allow others into a school building via an unauthorized door or at an unauthorized time.
3. Theft (More than \$100)	Students who take school property or the personal property of another school community member.
4. Extortion	Students who obtain money, property, or services from another school community member by expressed or implied threat of force.

5. Robbery	Students who take or attempt to take the property of another Students or school community member by force, threat of force, or by putting the victim in fear.		
6. Mutual fighting w/ Serious Injuries	Students who willingly engage in a one on one physical altercation in which the victim sustains serious injuries		
7. Mutual group fight w/ Serious Injuries	Students who willingly engage in a physical altercation with multiple willing participants. This is a physical altercation in which none of the participants are identified as aggressors or victims. Serious injuries are sustained as a result of the altercation.		
8. Instigation and/or participation in a group assault w/ Serious bodily Injuries	Students who instigate or participate in an assault by multiple Students on one or more other Students. This is a physical confrontation in which participants can clearly be identified as aggressors and victims. Including but not limited to Gang Violence.		
9. Simple Assault w/ Serious bodily injuries	Students who intentionally and without provocation, hit, punch, or kick a school community member. This does not include accidental physical contact such as a teacher being struck while breaking up a fight.		
10. Causing serious bodily injury	Students who intentionally engage in an act that causes serious bodily injury to another school community member. Serious bodily injury must be supported with documentation from a medical professional. Including but not limited to Gang Violence. Please note, causing serious bodily injury goes all the way to expulsion.		
11. Inappropriate touch/exposure	Pursuant to recommendation in Tier above, such conduct is subject to Title IX.		
12. Possession and/or use of alcohol and/or drugs (including	Students who are found to be in possession or who use alcohol or other drugs on school property or at a school sponsored event. This includes drugs in edible form. All Students in violation of this rule MUST be referred to the counselor.		

Vaporizer pens)	
13. Distribution of alcohol and/or drugs	Students who are found to be sharing or selling alcohol or drugs. This includes drugs in edible form.
14. Possession, Use or Activation of incendiary devices and/ or explosives	Students who possesss, use or activate incendiary devices such as matches, lighters, fireworks, bombs, firecrackers, bombshells and/or other explosives. This may include accidental or intentional fire starting.
15. Possession of a weapon	Students who possess any object, device, or instrument, which, in its inherent and functional purpose is intended to be a weapon. This includes firearms, whether loaded or not, cap guns, pellet guns, BB guns, knives, box cutters, cutting instruments, nunchaku, electric shock devices or mace or any object that may cause serious bodily injury.
16. Reckless endangerment	Students who take any action that creates a substantial risk such that serious bodily harm could result to any person. This infraction includes, but is not limited to throwing objects across a room or out of a window. • Reckless Endangerment is NOT cutting class, roaming hallways, or leaving school without authorization
17. Sexual Misconduct	<ul> <li>(This is language directly from your Title IX Board Policy)</li> <li>Title IX prohibits the following conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following: <ul> <li>Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the school's education program or activity.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>School employee conditioning educational benefits on participation in unwelcome sexual conduct, otherwise known as "Quid pro Quo" harassment.</li> <li>Sexual assault and dating violence.</li> </ul>

## Infraction Intervention Matrix

The table outlines the interventions Northwood Academy may utilize should a Students violate the code of conduct.

	Level 1 Infraction Interventions	Level 2 Infraction Interventions	Level 3 Infarction Intervention
K-2nd	Restorative Practices Loss of school privileges Mandatory Parent Conference	Restorative Practices Mandatory Parent Conference	Restorative Practices Mandatory Parent Conference
3rd-5th	Restorative Practices Community Service Loss of school privileges Mandatory Parent Conference	Restorative Practices In-School Suspension Out of School Suspension Community Service Behavior Intervention Plan Loss of school privileges Mandatory Parent Conference	Restorative Practices Out of School Suspension Behavior Intervention Plan Loss of school privileges Expulsion Mandatory Parent Conference
6th-8th	Restorative Practices Detention Community Service Loss of school privileges Mandatory Parent Conference	Restorative Practices In-School Suspension Out of School Suspension Community Service Behavior Intervention Plan Loss of school privileges Mandatory Parent Conference	Restorative Practices Out of School Suspension Behavior Intervention Plan Loss of school privileges Expulsion Mandatory Parent Conference

## Anti- Bullying, Anti-Cyber Bullying and Anti-Hazing Bullying

Northwood Academy recognizes the negative impact that bullying has on Students' health, welfare, and safety and on the learning environment at school. Northwood also recognizes that bullying creates an atmosphere of fear and intimidation, and detracts from a safe environment. Northwood defines bullying as an intentional electronic, written, verbal, nonverbal, psychological or physical act or series of acts directed at another Students or Students, which occurs in and/or outside a school setting, that is severe, persistent, or pervasive and has the effect of doing any of the following:

- 1. Substantially interfering with a Student's education;
- 2. Creating a threatening school environment; or
- 3. Substantially disrupting the orderly operation of the school.

Bullying is further characterized by the following three (3) criteria: Recommend deleting these 3 criteria as not set forth in the Anti-Bullying and Cyberbullying Board Policy.

1. It is aggressive behavior or intentional harm doing.

2. It is carried out repeatedly over time.

3. It occurs between people where there is an imbalance of power (e.g. physical strength, mental capacity, popularity, or social skills).

#### Hazing

Title 18 - Chapter 28 was added October 19, 2018, P.L.535, No.80, also known as the "Timothy J. Piazza Antihazing Law." Chapter 28 defines the following:

· §2802. Hazing.

(a) Offense defined.--A person commits the offense of hazing if the person intentionally, knowingly or recklessly, for the purpose of initiating, admitting or affiliating a minor or student into or with an organization, or for the purpose of continuing or enhancing a minor or student's membership or status in an organization, causes, coerces or forces a minor or student to do any of the following:

(1) Violate Federal or State criminal law.

(2) Consume any food, liquid, alcoholic liquid, drug or other substance which subjects the minor or student to a risk of emotional or physical harm.

(3) Endure brutality of a physical nature, including whipping, beating, branding, calisthenics or exposure to the elements.

(4) Endure brutality of a mental nature, including activity adversely affecting the mental health or dignity of the individual, sleep deprivation, exclusion from social contact or conduct that could result in extreme embarrassment.

(5) Endure brutality of a sexual nature.

(6) Endure any other activity that creates a reasonable likelihood of bodily injury to the minor or student.

(b) Grading.--

(1) Except as provided under paragraph (2), hazing is a summary offense.

(2) Hazing shall be a misdemeanor of the third degree if it results in or creates a reasonable likelihood of bodily injury to the minor or student.

(c) Limitation.--Hazing shall not include reasonable and customary athletic, law enforcement or military training, contests, competitions or events.

• Secondary school: Any public or private school within this Commonwealth providing instruction in grades 7 through 12 or any combination of those grades.

#### Response to Reports of Bullying at Northwood Academy

When Northwood Academy receives a complaint that bullying has occurred, the Bully designee, or designated administrator, will conduct an investigation to determine if the incident has met the three criteria for bullying and have had the aforementioned effects.

- 1. First the Bully designee will interview the claimant and the accused separately to gather the facts and produce a written statement
- 2. Next, the bully designee will review the facts to determine if the incident meets the standard of bullying
- 3. If the bullying designee determines that bullying has occurred, the designee will contact the perpetrating Students's parent/guardian to discuss the bullying policy, facts of the case and further interventions should bullying behavior continue. The consequences are as follows:
  - a. First Offense: Parent contact, document warning, level 2 intervention and restorative action independent of the victim.

- b. Second Offense: Mandatory parent conference, level 2 intervention and restorative action **independent of the** victim.
- c. Third Offense: Mandatory parent conference, short-term suspension, restorative action **independent of the** victim.

If the incident of bullying occurred in connection with a level 3 infraction, the perpetrating Students may be recommended for a disciplinary hearing and could face expulsion from Northwood Academy Charter School. Upon a third offense of bullying, the perpetrating Students may be recommended for a disciplinary hearing and could face expulsion from Northwood Academy Charter School pursuant to the Code of Conduct.

## Harassment (Other than Sexual Harassment - See Title IX Board Policy)

It is Northwood's policy to maintain an educational environment in which harassment of any form is not tolerated. Northwood defines harassment as verbal, nonverbal, written, graphic or physical conduct relating to an individual's age, race, color, , national origin/ethnicity, religion, disability, English language proficiency, socioeconomic status and/or political beliefs. Harassment does not have to include intent to harm, be directed at a specific target, or involve repeated incidents.

## **Confidential Reporting of Safety Concerns**

SAFE 2 SAY SOMETHING Safe2Say Something is a youth violence prevention program run by the Pennsylvania Office of Attorney General. The program teaches youth and adults how to recognize warning signs and signals, especially within social media, from individuals who may be a threat to themselves or others and to "say something" BEFORE it is too late. With Safe2Say Something, it's easy and confidential to report safety concerns to help prevent violence and tragedies. If it makes you uncomfortable, submit a tip. It will be up to your school to determine what the next steps are. Tips can be submitted online at www.safe2saypa.org or by phone at 1-844-SAF2SAY (723- 2729).

## Suspension of Privileges At Northwood Academy

Privileges such as on-campus and off-campus incentive trips and events may be suspended as a result of a student presenting challenging behavior. If Students do not earn enough merits to attend the event, or earn enough demerits to bar them from attending the event, they will not be permitted to attend the incentive based event.

### Suspensions At Northwood Academy

According to Pennsylvania law, suspension is defined as the denial to a student of the right to attend school and to take part in any school function for any period of up to ten (10) days. Suspensions must be preceded by notification to the Students and parent/guardian in writing.

In alignment with Northwood's s Student Code of Conduct, suspensions at Northwood Academy comprise three categories: in school, short-term out of school, and long-term out of school. An in-school suspension is an exclusion from a classroom for disciplinary purposes that allow a student to remain under the direct supervision of school personnel.

Short term out of school suspension is an exclusion from school and/or any school activity or function for a period of three or fewer school days. Students who are suspended must meet with the Dean of Students, or designated administrator prior to the suspension. During the conference, the Students have the right to the procedures described under Suspension Procedures outlined in this code of Students conduct.

Long-term out of school Suspension is an exclusion from school and/or any school activity or function for a period of four to ten school days. Students who are given a long-term suspension are to participate in a Students conference and a parent/guardian conference.

Note: Kindergarten, first, and second grade Students may NOT be suspended unless their actions result in serious bodily injury. Serious bodily injury is defined as bodily injury that involves (1) a substantial risk of death; (2) extreme physical pain; (3) protracted and obvious disfigurement; or protracted loss or impairment of the function of a body part, organ, or mental faculty. In order to prove serious bodily injury, medical documentation must be provided to the Principal .In lieu of suspension, the Students must be referred to the school social worker for a meeting to discuss appropriate behavioral or behavioral health interventions and support.

## Suspension of Students receiving Special Education services (IEP)

When Students receiving services under an individualized education program violate the code of conduct they are eligible for suspension if it is determined by the IEP team that the violation is not a manifestation of their disability. Students with an Intellectual Disability cannot be suspended even for one day as this represents a change in placement.

#### **Suspension Procedures**

When Students are suspended from Northwood Academy, we adhere to the following procedures

- 1. The students will meet with the Dean of Students or administrator issuing the suspension and have the right to share testimony.
- 2. The student's parent or guardian will receive a Notice of Suspension outlining details of the infraction and conference date in their preferred language via email and certified mail. We will also attempt to inform the student's parents by phone and by sending the Notice of Suspension to the guardian's email on file.
- When a student is suspended, an informal hearing conference must be held no later than day three of the suspension. Informal conferences may take place virtually via Zoom.
- 4. At the informal conference, the parent/guardian or caregiver may request to review and have a copy of the student's records and any witness statements, with other students names and information redacted. Interpretation will be provided if requested. (Photographs and video recordings of incidents may be shown to parents/guardians but copies will not be provided.)
- 5. Northwood administrators will discuss the student's behavior and ways to modify the behavior.
- 6. Northwood administrators will inform the parent/guardian of any further disciplinary action and provide an overview of the parent/guardian's due process rights regarding the disciplinary action, including the right to view evidence.
- 7. Schoolwork for Students with more than a four (4) day suspension must be provided to the parent/guardian at the conference, which is due upon reinstatement.

#### **Reinstatement Conference Procedures**

We encourage families to partner with us by attending conferences at the designated time and place to discuss the incident and methods we can use to ensure that our Students demonstrate positive behavior in line with the Northwood Norms.

#### Formal Hearing for Expulsion Procedures

A Student may be recommended for an expulsion by Administration at a formal hearing if the Student has committed an infraction as set forth above in the Code of Conduct which provides expulsion as a possible consequence. When a student is recommended for expulsion from Northwood Academy, they are entitled to due process which includes a formal hearing before Northwood Academy 's Board of Trustees, or a qualified hearing officer appointed by the Board. The student's rights are the foundation of formal hearing procedures. While the hearing should precede the placement, if the student's presence poses a continuing danger to persons or property, or an ongoing threat of disrupting the academic program, the Students may be immediately removed from the general education program with notice and a hearing to follow as soon as practicable.

- 1. Notification: The student's parent/guardian will receive notification of the charges via certified mail.
- 2. Notification of Hearing: With at least three days' notice, the student's parent/guardian will receive a Notice of Hearing outlining the date, time and place of the private formal due process hearing. The student's parent or guardian has the right to request a public formal hearing. The student's parent or guardian also has the right to request to reschedule the formal hearing. Requests must be made to the Board in writing via email.
- 3. The proceeding shall be held within 15 school days of the notification of charges, unless mutually agreed to by both parties. A hearing may be delayed for any of the following reasons, in which case the hearing shall be held as soon as reasonably possible:
  - a. Laboratory reports are needed from law enforcement agencies.
  - Evaluations or other court or administrative proceedings are pending due to a Students invoking their rights under the Individuals With Disabilities Education Act 2004 (20 U.S.C.A. §§ 1400—1482)
  - c. In cases in juvenile or criminal court involving sexual assault or serious bodily injury, delay is necessary due to the condition or best interests of the victim.

#### Student's Rights to Due Process during Formal Hearing for Expulsion

- The Student has the right, at the parent or guardian's expense, to be represented by legal counsel at the formal hearing.
- The Student has the right to be presented with the names of witnesses testifying against the Students as well as copies of their statements and affidavits.
- The Student has the right to request that the witness appear in person to answer questions and face cross-examination.

### Northwood Academy's Response to Students in Crisis

Northwood Academy's Student Assistance Program Team will work with students and their families when mental health needs are identified. If a mental health crisis occurs, this responce will include the guidance

counselor, in collaboration with the school social worker, completing a risk assessment to assess a student's level of emotional safety and risk for suicidal/homicidal behavior.

Students will be assessed and classified using the following risk categories below:

- NO FURTHER ACTION: No intervention needed. No active suicidal or homicidal ideation. No history of suicidal or homicidal behaviors; No signs of distress or concern.
- ROUTINE (low): Intervention within three days. No active suicidal or homicidal ideation, but extreme distress and/or a history of suicidal/homicidal Behavior
- URGENT (high): Intervention within 24 hours. Some current suicidal/homicidal ideation, but with no plan and with the ability of the child and his/her family to contract for safety and carry out a safety plan.
- EMERGENT (Imminent): Immediate Intervention. Current suicidal/homicidal ideation with clear, expressed intentions, and/or plan, and/or access to means, and/or past history of carrying out such behavior.

If a student is classified in the emergent category, the student will be referred to mobile crisis, or the Philadelphia Children's Crisis Response Center (CRC). The CRC is a crisis walk-in center that provides crisis stabilization, safety planning and continuing care for children experiencing a crisis in Philadelphia. Northwood will contact the student's family to facilitate the stabilization process. In the event that the parent/legal guardian cannot be reached emergency services will be contacted.

Please understand that, due to safety concerns, it is recommended that your child return to school after he/she has been assessed and/or treated by a licensed behavioral/medical professional and has received written notification of clearance to return to school, however, your student will not be denied admittance into school. Once your student is prepared to return, we would like to schedule a meeting as soon as possible between you and NACS' CARE team to discuss plans to best support your child in the school environment.

#### Notification of Rights under the FERPA for Elementary and Secondary Schools

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and Students who are 18 years of age or older ("eligible Students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records. These rights are:

1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days after the day the school receives a request for access.

Parents or eligible Students who wish to inspect their child's or their education records should submit to the school principal a written request that identifies the records they wish to inspect. The school official will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible Students of the time and place where the records may be inspected.

2. The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent or eligible Students believes are inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the student's privacy rights under FERPA.

Parents or eligible Students who wish to ask the school to amend their child's or their education record should contact the school principal or appropriate school official, clearly identify the part of the record they want changed, and specify why it should be changed. If the school decides not to amend the records as requested by the parent or eligible Students, the school will notify the parent or eligible Students of the decision and of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible Students when notified of the right to a hearing.

3. The right to provide written consent before the school discloses personally identifiable information (PII) from the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent.

Upon request, the school discloses education records without consent to officials of another school or school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll, or is already enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes of the student's enrollment or transfer. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the school to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA are:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education FERPA permits the disclosure of PII from a student's education records, without consent of the parent or eligible Students, if the disclosure meets certain conditions found in § 99.31 of the FERPA regulations. Except for disclosures to school officials, disclosures related to some judicial orders or lawfully issued subpoenas, disclosures of directory information, and disclosures to the parent or eligible Students, § 99.32 of the FERPA regulations requires the school to record the disclosure. Parents and eligible Students have a right to inspect and review the record of disclosures. A school may disclose PII from the education records of a student without obtaining prior written consent of the parents or the eligible Students.

- To other school officials, including teachers, within the educational agency or institution whom the school has determined to have legitimate educational interests. This includes contractors, consultants, volunteers, or other parties to whom the school has outsourced institutional services or functions, provided that the conditions listed in § 99.31(a)(1)(i)(B)(1) (a)(1)(i)(B)(3) are met. (§ 99.31(a)(1))
- To officials of another school, school system, or institution of postsecondary education where the Students seeks or intends to enroll, or where the Students is already enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer, subject to the requirements of § 99.34. (§ 99.31(a)(2))
- To authorized representatives of the U.S. Comptroller General, the U.S. Attorney General, the U.S. Secretary of Education, or State and local educational authorities, such as the State Educational Agency (SEA) in the parent or eligible Students's State. Disclosures under this provision may be made, subject to the requirements of § 99.35, in connection with an audit or evaluation of Federal- or State-supported education programs, or for the enforcement of or compliance with Federal legal requirements that relate to those programs. These entities may make further disclosures of PII to outside entities that are designated by them as their authorized representatives to conduct any audit, evaluation, or enforcement or compliance activity on their behalf, if applicable requirements are met. (§ 99.31(a)(3) and 99.35)
- In connection with financial aid for which the Students has applied, of which the Students has received, if the information is necessary for such purposes as to determine eligibility for the aid, determine the amount of the aid, determine the conditions of the aid, or enforce the terms and conditions of the aid. (§ 99.31(a)(4))

- To State and local officials or authorities to whom information is specifically allowed to be reported or disclosed by a State statute that concerns the juvenile justice system and the system's ability to effectively serve, prior to adjudication, the Students whose records were released, subject to § 99.38. (§ 99.31(a)(5))
- To organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf of, the school, in order to: (a) develop, validate, or administer predictive tests; (b) administer Students aid programs; or (c) improve instruction, if applicable requirements are met. (§ 99.31()(6))
- To accrediting organizations to carry out their accrediting functions. (§ 99.31(a)(7))
- To parents of an eligible Student if the Student is a dependent for IRA tax purposes. (§ 99.31(a)(8))
- To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena if applicable requirements are met. (§ 99.31(a)(9))
- To appropriate officials in connection with a health or safety emergency, subject to § 99.36. (§ 99.31(a)(10)
- Information the school has designated as "directory information" if applicable requirements under § 99.37 are met. (§ 99.31(a)(11))
- To an agency caseworker or other representative of a State or local child welfare agency or tribal organization who is authorized to access a Student's case plan when such agency or organization is legally responsible, in accordance with State or tribal law, for the care and protection of the Students in foster care placement. (20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)(L))
- To the Secretary of Agriculture or authorized representatives of the Food and Nutrition Service for purposes of conducting program monitoring, evaluations, and performance measurements of programs authorized under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act or the Child Nutrition Act of 1996, under certain conditions. (20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)(K))

### Search & Seizure

In the interest of maintaining school safety and a productive learning environment, Northwood Academy may find it necessary to conduct reasonable searches and seizures.

Entry Search: For the purpose of preventing the introduction of weapons, contraband, or illegal items to a Northwood school program, athletic contest, activity location, school bus or the school building, Northwood may search the physical person and their belongings by means of metal detector, X-ray equipment, or by hand. Individual Physical Search: For the purpose of investigating a violation of the Code of Conduct, Northwood Academy may search an individual, or the possessions in their immediate control including (handbag, bookbag, lunchbag) when there is reasonable suspicion that:

- a. There has been a criminal infraction or a violation of Northwood Academy's Code of Conduct.
- b. The individual subject to the search participated in the infraction or violation and,
- c. Evidence of the infraction or violations, or proceeds from them may be in the possession of the student in the location to be searched.

## **Parent Volunteer Opportunities**

#### **Volunteer Clearance Requirement**

We, at Northwood, appreciate the time given by our families to our many programs and events. We also take the safety of our students very seriously. As of July 1st, 2015, any adult who wishes to serve as a volunteer (this includes, but is not limited to, field trip chaperones) at Northwood will need background clearances. This is in accordance with Child Protective Services Laws, Act 153 of 2014. Pennsylvania has waived its fees associated with these volunteer clearances; however, the \$27 FBI fingerprinting fee still applies. Please know that payment is your responsibility and will not be reimbursed by Northwood Academy.

The following clearances are needed:

- Report of criminal history from the Pennsylvania State Police (PSP)
- Child Abuse History Clearance from the Department of Human Services (Child Abuse)
- A fingerprint-based federal criminal history (FBI)

More information about clearances required under the Child Protective Services Law can be found at www.keepkidssafe.pa.gov. Individuals seeking clearances can go directly to www.compass.state.pa.us/cwis to create an individual account and apply for their child abuse clearance electronically.

All clearance information will be kept confidential and handled directly by our Community Coordinator. If there is a violation that would preclude you from being able to volunteer, you will be notified directly. Any new information you need to be aware of will be communicated, when it becomes available, via our website, handbook, and/or Wednesday reminders.

Please be advised that we need to receive, review and process all three (3) of the clearances listed above before you are permitted to volunteer at Northwood. Once you have obtained your clearances, please bring the original documents to the school. The school is required by law to see the originals. Copies of clearances will be made for your volunteer file and the originals will be returned. These clearances are needed prior to volunteering and it is advised that you obtain these clearances as soon as possible.

Clearances will not be needed to attend general admission events such as Family Movie Night, Spring Concert, etcetera. We look forward to continuing family involvement.

### **School Visitation Protocol**

All visitors must report directly to the front main office (Castor Ave entrance). Visitors must sign in and out of the building and wear a visitor's pass or identification badge. An administrator has the right to refuse admission to the school for those who fail to make advance arrangements or whose presence conflicts with other school activities.

Visitors will be buzzed into the vestibule area and are not permitted access to classrooms or to interrupt staff members in the performance of duties. Visitors are prohibited from carrying weapons into the school building. Only on-duty law enforcement officers are permitted to carry their weapons in the building.

### **School Premises Permissions & Conduct**

Parents/Guardians have "implied permission" to enter and be on the school's premises for reasons relating to their child/children's education. This means that parents/guardians are welcome to come to the school to drop off and pick up their children, to speak to staff (following standard protocols), and for meetings and/or school-wide events. Parents do not have a legal right to enter or be on the school's premises without a valid reason.

In education law, the term "parent" includes the natural or adoptive parents of a student, as well as a non-parent with care of a student and a non-parent with parental responsibility of a student. For the purposes of this policy only, the term "parent" can also include a non-parent who does not have care of or parental responsibility for a student, but who is involved in looking after a student on a regular basis (for example, a non-resident partner of a parent or relative who takes the student to or from school, is involved with the care of the student in some other way, attends a school function, or a person with whose emergency contact number

we have been provided) with proper parental/guardian consent. Members of the public without authorization who are on school premises are trespassing and local law enforcement will be called pursuant to the School's Memorandum of Understanding.

The school has the right to withdraw the "implied permission" for a parent or visitor to enter or be on the school's premises (or location of off-site school events, such as sporting events or field trips) if their behavior while they were previously on the school's premises (or other off-site location) was unacceptable. The withdrawal of the "implied permission" will be effective as soon as the parent or other visitor has been told that they must leave and are prohibited from returning, and will be confirmed in writing by recorded delivery if the home address is known.

## **Classroom Access Policy**

Northwood Academy observes an open door policy for its students and their family members. An open house is held annually when parents/guardians are invited to come and observe their child(ren) in the classroom. In the event additional observation is desired, please contact the Administration to arrange a convenient time for the observation. Please allow 48 hours to arrange for such a visit.

## Communicating with Staff/Teachers

Frequent, consistent parent/teacher communication is vital to the educational success of your child(ren). Together we form a team that focuses on your child's needs, concerns, and growth. We invite you to participate in the process by contacting the school whenever you have concerns or questions. Each Wednesday, the bulk of school-wide communications are sent via the Remind app. Please read carefully the information offered in this section regarding communication.

Listed below are the methods of communication by which we maintain contact with families:

- School website: www.northwoodcs.org
- Remind app messages/notifications
- Weekly Wednesday Reminders (Bulldog Blasts)

E-mail: the teacher's first initial and lastname@northwoodcs.org (e.g. jsmith@northwoodcs.org)

- Scheduled parent/teacher conferences
- Progress/Interim Reports
- Report Cards

- Letters from administration and teachers
- Notes or telephone calls
- Board meetings
- Parent/Guardian information sessions

At Northwood, there are multiple staff members available to speak with you regarding your child(ren). Clerical concerns can be handled through the front office. The classroom teacher is the starting point when you have a question or concern. If you wish to speak with your child's teacher, please call, write a note, use classroom communication channels (e.g., Classroom Dojo, Remind) or email to arrange a discussion time. Please note that office staff will convey parental messages to individual teachers but are not allowed to interrupt instruction. You should receive an initial response from your child's teacher within 24 hours of leaving a message. The issue may not be resolved at that time, but you will have communicated directly with the teacher.

During arrival and dismissal times, teachers have a responsibility to focus their attention on the children. This is not a time for parents to have "brief" meetings with teachers. If there is something that cannot wait, please send a note with your child, call or visit the office, or send an email to the teacher. If you need a response or action within a school day, do not count on email; call the office as emails may only be checked in the morning.

In the event you require a more thorough process, the Board of Trustees asks that you follow the protocol below:

Step 1) In the event of a concern, a parent/guardian or community member should contact their child's classroom teacher, supervisor, coach or staff member who is directly involved with the concern or situation.

Step 2) If a parent/guardian or community member has completed Step 1 and feels that the issue or concern was not remedied, they should contact their child's Assistant Principal, the Director of Special Education (for special education-related concerns), or the Athletic Director (for sports-related concerns).

Step 3) If a parent/guardian or community member has completed Steps 1 and 2 and feels that the issue or concern was not remedied, they should contact the school Principal. Beyond this, contact the CEO.

Step 4) If a parent/guardian or community member has completed Steps 1, 2, and 3 and feels that the issue or concern warrants yet further discussion, the parent or community member should then contact the Northwood Academy Board of Trustees (board@northwoodcs.org) and/or follow the protocol to be put on the Board meeting agenda.

#### Change of Address and/or Telephone Number

It is necessary for parents/guardians to immediately notify both the homeroom teacher and the school office concerning any change in address and/or telephone number whether it be a change at home or place of employment. It is critically important that we have a way of reaching someone in the event of an emergency. Proof of residency is required for an address change. This can be in the form of a utility bill, lease, or photo ID.

## Northwood Student & Family Commitments

Northwood is committed to providing Students with a superior educational experience that prepares them for success in a college preparatory high school by delivering high quality instruction in academics and disciplines that develop the whole child. We are a learning sanctuary where Students develop the skills to carry out their highest aspirations. We invite you to make the following commitments to our school community to ensure the smooth operation of school operations and allow us the opportunity to maximize student learning outcomes.

Northwood Family's & Students Commit to:

- Attending school regularly
- Submitting a proper excuse for absence within 3 days of the occurrence.
- Arriving to class on time
- Pursuing and attempting to complete all courses with excellence and asking for help when needed
- To avoid inaccuracies in the development of posters, or publications and for avoiding indecent, inappropriate or obscene language.
- Be aware of all rules and regulations governing student behavior and conduct themselves accordingly

- Express their ideas and opinions in a respectful manner so as to nor offend or slander others.
- Volunteer information in matters relating to the health, safety and welfare of the school community and the preservation of its property.
- Dressing appropriately according to the Northwood Academy Charter School uniform policy.
- Using NACS materials, equipment and facilities with proper care to maintain its working condition.
- Upholding the right of fellow Students to receive an education
- Demonstrating respect for all NACS community members including hall monitors, security personnel

### **Requesting Evaluation**

Class Change policy Retention Policy Academic Policies (late, homework, grade weights, Achievement day requirements) Report Card Conferences Remote Learning Policies Media Consent Appropriate Technology use

# Handbook Consent Sign-Off

## Please read and complete the handbook Consent Digital Sign-Off at this Link

If a hard copy is preferred please read and complete the form below and return to Northwood Academy Charter School. The details of acknowledgement/refusal below can be retained for your records.

Signing this form means that I agree to the following:

I agree with all Policies, Procedures, Protocols, and Pursuits as described within the 2023-2024 Student/Parent Handbook.

I decline/disagree with the Policies, Procedures, Protocols, and Pursuits as described within the 2023-2023 Student/Parent Handbook. I will contact the Administration Team to discuss this further.

The Northwood Academy Charter School Student/Parent Handbook has been developed to communicate the responsibilities that all stakeholders share in ensuring every student has a safe, secure place for learning. Our partnership relies on promises kept, trust, good faith, and a commitment to the well-being of all students. This consent and acknowledgment reflect my and my child's intention to live up to this compact and all the provisions contained herein.

Parent Name (Print):
Parent Signature (Sign):
Student Name (Print):
Student Signature (Sign):

Date: \_\_\_\_\_